CITY OF NORFOLK, NEBRASKA

The Mayor and City Council of the City of Norfolk met in regular session in the Council Chambers, 309 Madison Avenue, Norfolk, Nebraska on the 17th day of October, 2005, beginning at 7:30 p.m.

Following a moment of silence and the Pledge of Allegiance to the United States of America, Mayor Gordon Adams called the meeting to order. Roll call found the following Councilpersons present: Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss, and Saunders. Absent: Wilson.

Staff members present were: City Administrator Mike Nolan, Director of Public Works Dennis Smith, City Attorney Clint Schukei, City Clerk Beth Deck and Prevention Manager Scott Cordes.

The Mayor presided and the City Clerk recorded the proceedings.

Notice of the meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Norfolk Daily News, Norfolk, Nebraska, the designated method of giving notice, as shown by affidavit of publication.

Notice was given to the Mayor and all members of the Council and a copy of their acknowledgement of receipt of notice and agenda is attached to the minutes. Availability of the agenda was communicated in the advance notice and in the notice to the Mayor and Council of this meeting. All proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the public.

Councilman Leshovsky moved, seconded by Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman to approve the consent agenda as printed. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried.

Councilman Brenneman moved, seconded by Councilman Fauss to adopt the regular agenda as printed. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried.

SPECIAL PRESENTATION

Karen Linnenbrink, Director of Entrepreneur Programs for the Elkhorn Valley Economic Development Council, gave a presentation on programs offered by EVEDC.

CONSENT AGENDA

The City Council approved the minutes of the October 3, 2005 City Council meeting.

The City Council adopted Resolution No. 2005-70 approving the final plat of **Kimmel** Subdivision and authorizing the Mayor to sign the accompanying subdivision agreement. This is a two (2) lot subdivision located at 9th Street and Isabelle Avenue. Durward E. and Carole J. Kimmel are owners of the property.

The City Council adopted Resolution No. 2005-71 providing for amendment of the agreement with **LARM** related to the Intergovernmental Risk Management Act.

The City Council adopted Resolution No. 2005-72 approving the final plat of **Walters' Wedgewood 12th** Addition and authorizing the Mayor to sign the accompanying subdivision agreement.

The City Council approved the City of Norfolk, Nebraska, **Rehabilitation Program and Operational Plan** for owner occupied homes. The City has had a housing rehab program and operational plan in place for many years. However, new Federal guidelines are being incorporated into the existing document.

The City Council approved a Special Designated **Liquor** License for HyVee, Inc., dba HyVee #2, to sell beer and wine at Sacred Heart Parish Center, 2301 West Madison Avenue, on Monday, November 14, 2005 for a Priest Appreciation Dinner.

The City Council approved the appointment of Norfolk City Administrator Michael Nolan to the **Nebraska on the Move** Board.

The City Council approved and authorized the Mayor to sign an Acquisition Contract with the State of Nebraska Department of Roads for a 0.02 acres tract of land located along **Highway 35** immediately east of the Flood Control Channel for an amount of \$120.00 and authorized the Mayor to execute all related documents to consummate sale of the property.

The City Council approved and authorized City staff to repair a **sidewalk** at 114 West Park Avenue according to Section 22 of City Code. The property owner has not responded to fixing the sidewalk; therefore, staff recommends this action to do the repairs.

The City Council approved the appointment of Kathy Svik of U.S. Bank to the **Vehicle Parking District** Loan Advisory Board for a four-year term expiring in October 2009.

The City Council approved a \$250,000 loan to the Greater Norfolk Economic Development Foundation, Inc. from Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds to purchase the **Vishay** Building located at 2300 Riverside Boulevard.

The City Council approved all bills on file in the amount of \$1,812,740.77.

REGULAR AGENDA

A public hearing was held to consider a zoning change from I-3 (Limited Industrial District) to R-R (Rural Residential District) at Medelman's Lake at the request of Paul **Medelman** (Medelman's Lake Development, Inc.). Prevention Manager Scott Cordes provided information to the Mayor and City Council. Medelman plans to develop the area around the lake south of the Elkhorn River and east of Highway 81 into residential.

On September 20, 2005, the Norfolk Planning Commission held a public hearing regarding Medelman's request. The City Clerk read the Planning Commission's recommendation for approval into the record.

No one else appeared either in favor of or in opposition to the zoning change and the Mayor declared the hearing closed.

The Mayor requested consideration of Ordinance No. 4838 for a zoning change from I-3 (Limited Industrial District) to R-R (Rural Residential District) at Medelman's Lake at the request of Paul Medelman (Medelman's Lake Development, Inc.)

Councilman Van Dyke introduced Ordinance No. 4838 entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, MADISON COUNTY, NEBRASKA; AMENDING THE ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, NEBRASKA; PROVIDING WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; AND PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM and moved that the ordinance be passed on first reading. Councilman Lange seconded the motion. Said ordinance was then read into the record by title by the City Clerk. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. Ordinance No. 4838 passed on first reading.

Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended. Councilwoman Saunders seconded the motion to suspend the rules. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was adopted by three-fourths of the Council and the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days was suspended for consideration of said ordinance.

Thereafter Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman moved that the statutory rules requiring reading on three different days be suspended and for final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilwoman Saunders. The Mayor then stated the question "Shall Ordinance No. 4838 be passed and adopted?" Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been concurred in by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor signed and approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage and adoption of the same and affixed her signature thereto. The Mayor then instructed the City Clerk to publish said Ordinance No. 4838 as required by law.

A public hearing was held to consider an amended final Planned Development (P.D.) at 600 South 37th Street at the request of Jeff **Warren**. Prevention Manager Scott Cordes provided information to the Mayor and City Council. The amendment is necessary to allow signage on the Warren Garage Door building.

On September 20, 2005, the Norfolk Planning Commission held a public hearing regarding Warren's request. The City Clerk read the Planning Commission's recommendation for approval into the record.

No one appeared either in favor of or in opposition to the zoning change and the Mayor declared the hearing closed.

The Mayor requested consideration of Ordinance No. 4839 amending the final Warren Planned Development (P.D.) at 600 South 37th Street.

Councilman Leshovsky introduced Ordinance No. 4839 entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, MADISON COUNTY, NEBRASKA; AMENDING THE ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, NEBRASKA; BY REVISING A PREVIOUSLY APPROVED PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN; PROVIDING WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; AND PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM and moved that the ordinance be passed on first reading. Councilman Lange seconded the motion. Said ordinance was then read into the record by title by the City Clerk. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. Ordinance No. 4839 passed on first reading.

Councilman Brenneman moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended. Councilman Fauss seconded the motion to suspend the rules. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was adopted by three-fourths of the Council and the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days was suspended for consideration of said ordinance.

Thereafter Councilman Brenneman moved that the statutory rules requiring reading on three different days be suspended and for final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilman Fauss. The Mayor then stated the question "Shall Ordinance No. 4839 be passed and adopted?" Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been concurred in by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor signed and approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage and adoption of the same and affixed her signature thereto. The Mayor then instructed the City Clerk to publish said Ordinance No. 4839 as required by law.

A public hearing was held to consider a zoning change from I-1 (Light Industrial District) to A (Agricultural District) at the request of Harvest Church on property at 1810 Channel Road. Prevention Manager Scott Cordes provided information to the Mayor and City Council. The church wants to build an addition and churches are not allowed in I-1 zoning. Harvest Church requests the agricultural zoning which allows churches and is the predominate zoning in the area.

On October 4, 2005, the Norfolk Planning Commission held a public hearing regarding **Harvest Church's** request. The City Clerk read the Planning Commission's recommendation for approval into the record.

No one appeared either in favor of or in opposition to the zoning change and the Mayor declared the hearing closed.

The Mayor requested consideration of Ordinance No. 4840 for a zoning change from I-1 (Light Industrial District) to A (Agricultural District) at the request of Harvest Church on property at 1810 Channel Road.

Councilman Lange introduced Ordinance No. 4840 entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, MADISON COUNTY, NEBRASKA; AMENDING THE ZONING DISTRICT

MAP OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, NEBRASKA; PROVIDING WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; AND PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM and moved that the ordinance be passed on first reading. Councilwoman Saunders seconded the motion. Said ordinance was then read into the record by title by the City Clerk. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. Ordinance No. 4840 passed on first reading.

Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended. Councilman Van Dyke seconded the motion to suspend the rules. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was adopted by three-fourths of the Council and the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days was suspended for consideration of said ordinance.

Thereafter Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman moved that the statutory rules requiring reading on three different days be suspended and for final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilman Van Dyke. The Mayor then stated the question "Shall Ordinance No. 4840 be passed and adopted?" Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been concurred in by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor signed and approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage and adoption of the same and affixed her signature thereto. The Mayor then instructed the City Clerk to publish said Ordinance No. 4840 as required by law.

The Mayor requested consideration of Ordinance No. 4835 amending Section 24-110 in order to increase the speed to 30 miles per hour on **Taylor** Avenue from Pasewalk Avenue to 25th Street.

Councilman Van Dyke introduced Ordinance No. 4835 entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, NEBRASKA, TO AMEND SECTION 24-110 OF THE OFFICIAL CITY CODE TO PROVIDE FOR A SPEED LIMIT OF 30 MILES PER HOUR ON TAYLOR AVENUE FROM PASEWALK AVENUE TO 25TH STREET; TO PROVIDE WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; AND TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM and moved that the ordinance be passed on first reading. Councilman Leshovsky seconded the motion. Said ordinance was then read into the record by title by the City Clerk. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. Ordinance No. 4835 passed on first reading.

Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended. Councilman Fauss seconded the motion to suspend the rules.

Councilman Van Dyke feels the Council should delay second and third readings of the ordinance to provide citizens the opportunity to comment on the proposed speed limit.

Roll call on suspending the rules for Ordinance No. 4835: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Kaspar-Beckman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: Van Dyke and Brenneman. Absent: Wilson. Motion failed. The motion to suspend the rules failed.

The Mayor requested consideration of Ordinance No. 4836 authorizing the sale of abandoned Chicago & Northwestern Railroad right-of-way property addressed as 1503 Queen City Boulevard to Connie J. **Geary** for \$4,553.64 pursuant to the terms of a Lease Agreement with option to purchase dated October 10, 2003.

Councilman Van Dyke introduced Ordinance No. 4836 entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, NEBRASKA, TO AUTHORIZE THE SALE OF CITY PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE THE TERMS OF SALE AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A QUITCLAIM DEED TO THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR A REMONSTRANCE TO SAID SALE AS PROVIDED BY LAW; TO PROVIDE WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; TO PROVIDE FOR THIS PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM and moved that the ordinance be passed on first reading. Councilman Fauss seconded the motion. Said ordinance was then read into the record by title by the City Clerk. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. Ordinance No. 4836 passed on first reading.

Councilman Lange moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended. Councilman Brenneman seconded the motion to suspend the rules. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was adopted by three-fourths of the Council and the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days was suspended for consideration of said ordinance.

Thereafter Councilman Lange moved that the statutory rules requiring reading on three different days be suspended and for final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilman Brenneman. The Mayor then stated the question "Shall Ordinance No. 4836 be passed and adopted?" Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been concurred in by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor signed and approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage and adoption of the same and affixed her signature thereto. The Mayor then instructed the City Clerk to publish said Ordinance No. 4836 as required by law.

The Mayor requested consideration of Ordinance No 4837 authorizing the sale of abandoned Chicago & Northwestern Railroad right-of-way property at 1505 Queen City Boulevard to KCM, Inc. for \$6,971.64 pursuant to the terms of a Lease Agreement with option to purchase dated November 3, 2003.

Councilman Fauss introduced Ordinance No. 4837 entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, NEBRASKA, TO AUTHORIZE THE SALE OF CITY PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE THE TERMS OF SALE AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A QUITCLAIM DEED TO THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR A REMONSTRANCE TO SAID SALE AS PROVIDED BY LAW; TO PROVIDE WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; TO PROVIDE FOR THIS PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM and moved that the ordinance be passed on first reading. Councilman Leshovsky seconded the motion. Said ordinance was

then read into the record by title by the City Clerk. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. Ordinance No. 4837 passed on first reading.

Councilman Leshovsky moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended. Councilman Fauss seconded the motion to suspend the rules. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was adopted by three-fourths of the Council and the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days was suspended for consideration of said ordinance.

Thereafter Councilman Leshovsky moved that the statutory rules requiring reading on three different days be suspended and for final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilman Fauss. The Mayor then stated the question "Shall Ordinance No. 4837 be passed and adopted?" Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been concurred in by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor signed and approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage and adoption of the same and affixed her signature thereto. The Mayor then instructed the City Clerk to publish said Ordinance No. 4837 as required by law.

The Mayor requested consideration of Ordinance No. 4841 authorizing the sale of a 0.02 acre tract of land located along **Highway 35** immediately east of the Flood Control Channel to the State of Nebraska Department of Roads for an amount of \$120.00 and authorizing the Mayor to execute the related quitclaim deed.

Councilwoman Saunders introduced Ordinance No. 4841 entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, MADISON COUNTY, NEBRASKA TO AUTHORIZE THE SALE OF CITY PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE THE TERMS OF SALE AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A QUITCLAIM DEED TO THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR A REMONSTRANCE TO SAID SALE AS PROVIDED BY LAW; TO PROVIDE WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; AND TO PROVIDE THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE PUBLISHED IN PAMPHLET FORM and moved that the ordinance be passed on first reading. Councilman Leshovsky seconded the motion. Said ordinance was then read into the record by title by the City Clerk. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. Ordinance No. 4841 passed on first reading.

Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended. Councilman Leshovsky seconded the motion to suspend the rules. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was adopted by three-fourths of the Council and the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days was suspended for consideration of said ordinance.

Thereafter Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman moved that the statutory rules requiring reading on three different days be suspended and for final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilman Leshovsky. The Mayor then stated the question "Shall Ordinance No. 4841 be passed and adopted?" Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been concurred in by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor signed and approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage and adoption of the same and affixed her signature thereto. The Mayor then instructed the City Clerk to publish said Ordinance No. 4841 as required by law.

The Mayor requested consideration of Ordinance No. 4842 authorizing the sale of City property which lies directly to the west of 803 North Birch Street to Tom and Nicole **Wiese**.

Public Works Director Dennis Smith explained Ordinances No. 4842 through 4852 provide for the sale of City-owned property purchased from Wayne **Walters** to use as a drainage ditch for soccer fields located south of the Fire Training Facility. The excess land is being sold to adjacent property owners.

Councilman Van Dyke introduced Ordinance No. 4842 entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, NEBRASKA, TO AUTHORIZE THE SALE OF CITY PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE THE TERMS OF SALE AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A QUITCLAIM DEED TO THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR A REMONSTRANCE TO SAID SALE AS PROVIDED BY LAW; TO PROVIDE WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM and moved that the ordinance be passed on first reading. Councilman Leshovsky seconded the motion. Said ordinance was then read into the record by title by the City Clerk. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. Ordinance No. 4842 passed on first reading.

Councilman Leshovsky moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended. Councilwoman Saunders seconded the motion to suspend the rules. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was adopted by three-fourths of the Council and the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days was suspended for consideration of said ordinance.

Thereafter Councilman Leshovsky moved that the statutory rules requiring reading on three different days be suspended and for final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilwoman Saunders. The Mayor then stated the question "Shall Ordinance No. 4842 be passed and adopted?" Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been concurred in by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor signed and approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage and adoption of the same and affixed her signature thereto. The Mayor then instructed the City Clerk to publish said Ordinance No. 4842 as required by law.

The Mayor requested consideration of Ordinance No. 4843 authorizing the sale of City property which lies directly to the west of 817 North Birch Street to Ricky and Beverly **Benson**.

Councilman Lange introduced Ordinance No. 4843 entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, NEBRASKA, TO AUTHORIZE THE SALE OF CITY PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE THE TERMS OF SALE AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A QUITCLAIM DEED TO THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR A REMONSTRANCE TO SAID SALE AS PROVIDED BY LAW; TO PROVIDE WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM and moved that the ordinance be passed on first reading. Councilman Leshovsky seconded the motion. Said ordinance was then read into the record by title by the City Clerk. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. Ordinance No. 4843 passed on first reading.

Councilman Lange moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended. Councilman Fauss seconded the motion to suspend the rules. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was adopted by three-fourths of the Council and the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days was suspended for consideration of said ordinance.

Thereafter Councilman Lange moved that the statutory rules requiring reading on three different days be suspended and for final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilman Fauss. The Mayor then stated the question "Shall Ordinance No. 4843 be passed and adopted?" Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been concurred in by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor signed and approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage and adoption of the same and affixed her signature thereto. The Mayor then instructed the City Clerk to publish said Ordinance No. 4843 as required by law.

The Mayor requested consideration of Ordinance No. 4844 authorizing the sale of City property which lies directly to the west of 813 North Birch Street to Nicholas and Renee **Cleveland**.

Councilman Van Dyke introduced Ordinance No. 4844 entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, NEBRASKA, TO AUTHORIZE THE SALE OF CITY PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE THE TERMS OF SALE AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A QUITCLAIM DEED TO THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR A REMONSTRANCE TO SAID SALE AS PROVIDED BY LAW; TO PROVIDE WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM and moved that the ordinance be passed on first reading. Councilman Brenneman seconded the motion. Said ordinance was then read into the record by title by the City Clerk. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. Ordinance No. 4844 passed on first reading.

Councilman Brenneman moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended. Councilman Fauss seconded the motion to suspend the rules. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was

adopted by three-fourths of the Council and the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days was suspended for consideration of said ordinance.

Thereafter Councilman Brenneman moved that the statutory rules requiring reading on three different days be suspended and for final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilman Fauss. The Mayor then stated the question "Shall Ordinance No. 4844 be passed and adopted?" Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been concurred in by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor signed and approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage and adoption of the same and affixed her signature thereto. The Mayor then instructed the City Clerk to publish said Ordinance No. 4844 as required by law.

The Mayor requested consideration of Ordinance No. 4845 authorizing the sale of City property which lies directly to the west of 809 North Birch Street to Lynn J. and Beverly **Hansen**.

Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman introduced Ordinance No. 4845 entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, NEBRASKA, TO AUTHORIZE THE SALE OF CITY PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE THE TERMS OF SALE AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A QUITCLAIM DEED TO THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR A REMONSTRANCE TO SAID SALE AS PROVIDED BY LAW; TO PROVIDE WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM and moved that the ordinance be passed on first reading. Councilwoman Saunders seconded the motion. Said ordinance was then read into the record by title by the City Clerk. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. Ordinance No. 4845 passed on first reading.

Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended. Councilman Fauss seconded the motion to suspend the rules. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was adopted by three-fourths of the Council and the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days was suspended for consideration of said ordinance.

Thereafter Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman moved that the statutory rules requiring reading on three different days be suspended and for final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilman Fauss. The Mayor then stated the question "Shall Ordinance No. 4845 be passed and adopted?" Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been concurred in by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor signed and approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage and adoption of the same and affixed her signature thereto. The Mayor then instructed the City Clerk to publish said Ordinance No. 4845 as required by law.

The Mayor requested consideration of Ordinance No. 4846 authorizing the sale of City property which lies directly to the west of 801 North Birch Street to David and Annette **Henning**.

Councilman Brenneman introduced Ordinance No. 4846 entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, NEBRASKA, TO AUTHORIZE THE SALE OF CITY PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE THE TERMS OF SALE AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A QUITCLAIM DEED TO THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR A REMONSTRANCE TO SAID SALE AS PROVIDED BY LAW; TO PROVIDE WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM and moved that the ordinance be passed on first reading. Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman seconded the motion. Said ordinance was then read into the record by title by the City Clerk. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. Ordinance No. 4846 passed on first reading.

Councilman Van Dyke moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended. Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman seconded the motion to suspend the rules. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was adopted by three-fourths of the Council and the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days was suspended for consideration of said ordinance.

Thereafter Councilman Van Dyke moved that the statutory rules requiring reading on three different days be suspended and for final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman. The Mayor then stated the question "Shall Ordinance No. 4846 be passed and adopted?" Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been concurred in by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor signed and approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage and adoption of the same and affixed her signature thereto. The Mayor then instructed the City Clerk to publish said Ordinance No. 4846 as required by law.

The Mayor requested consideration of Ordinance No. 4847 authorizing the sale of City property which lies directly to the west of 703 North Birch Street to Terry and Leanne **Hochstein**.

Councilman Fauss introduced Ordinance No. 4847 entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, NEBRASKA, TO AUTHORIZE THE SALE OF CITY PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE THE TERMS OF SALE AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A QUITCLAIM DEED TO THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR A REMONSTRANCE TO SAID SALE AS PROVIDED BY LAW; TO PROVIDE WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM and moved that the ordinance be passed on first reading. Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman seconded the motion. Said ordinance was then read into the record by title by the City Clerk. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. Ordinance No. 4847 passed on first reading.

Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended. Councilman Fauss seconded the motion to suspend the rules. Roll

call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was adopted by three-fourths of the Council and the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days was suspended for consideration of said ordinance.

Thereafter Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman moved that the statutory rules requiring reading on three different days be suspended and for final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilman Fauss. The Mayor then stated the question "Shall Ordinance No. 4847 be passed and adopted?" Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been concurred in by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor signed and approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage and adoption of the same and affixed her signature thereto. The Mayor then instructed the City Clerk to publish said Ordinance No. 4847 as required by law.

The Mayor requested consideration of Ordinance No. 4848 authorizing the sale of City property which lies directly to the west of 805 North Birch Street to Roger and Mildred **Lubke**.

Councilwoman Saunders introduced Ordinance No. 4848 entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, NEBRASKA, TO AUTHORIZE THE SALE OF CITY PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE THE TERMS OF SALE AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A QUITCLAIM DEED TO THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR A REMONSTRANCE TO SAID SALE AS PROVIDED BY LAW; TO PROVIDE WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM and moved that the ordinance be passed on first reading. Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman seconded the motion. Said ordinance was then read into the record by title by the City Clerk. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. Ordinance No. 4848 passed on first reading.

Councilman Brenneman moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended. Councilwoman Saunders seconded the motion to suspend the rules. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was adopted by three-fourths of the Council and the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days was suspended for consideration of said ordinance.

Thereafter Councilman Brenneman moved that the statutory rules requiring reading on three different days be suspended and for final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilwoman Saunders. The Mayor then stated the question "Shall Ordinance No. 4848 be passed and adopted?" Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been concurred in by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor signed and approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage and adoption of the same and affixed her signature thereto. The Mayor then instructed the City Clerk to publish said Ordinance No. 4848 as required by law.

The Mayor requested consideration of Ordinance No. 4849 authorizing the sale of City property which lies directly to the west of 815 North Birch Street to Brian and Lori **Lundy**.

Councilman Leshovsky introduced Ordinance No. 4849 entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, NEBRASKA, TO AUTHORIZE THE SALE OF CITY PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE THE TERMS OF SALE AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A QUITCLAIM DEED TO THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR A REMONSTRANCE TO SAID SALE AS PROVIDED BY LAW; TO PROVIDE WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM and moved that the ordinance be passed on first reading. Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman seconded the motion. Said ordinance was then read into the record by title by the City Clerk. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. Ordinance No. 4849 passed on first reading.

Councilman Leshovsky moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended. Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman seconded the motion to suspend the rules. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was adopted by three-fourths of the Council and the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days was suspended for consideration of said ordinance.

Thereafter Councilman Leshovsky moved that the statutory rules requiring reading on three different days be suspended and for final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman. The Mayor then stated the question "Shall Ordinance No. 4849 be passed and adopted?" Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been concurred in by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor signed and approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage and adoption of the same and affixed her signature thereto. The Mayor then instructed the City Clerk to publish said Ordinance No. 4849 as required by law.

The Mayor requested consideration of Ordinance No. 4850 authorizing the sale of City property which lies directly to the west of 903 North Boxelder Street to Steve and Ann **Sothan**.

Councilman Lange introduced Ordinance No. 4850 entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, NEBRASKA, TO AUTHORIZE THE SALE OF CITY PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE THE TERMS OF SALE AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A QUITCLAIM DEED TO THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR A REMONSTRANCE TO SAID SALE AS PROVIDED BY LAW; TO PROVIDE WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM and moved that the ordinance be passed on first reading. Councilman Leshovsky seconded the motion. Said ordinance was then read into the record by title by the City Clerk. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. Ordinance No. 4850 passed on first reading.

Councilman Lange moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended. Councilman Leshovsky seconded the motion to suspend the rules. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was adopted by three-fourths of the Council and the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days was suspended for consideration of said ordinance.

Thereafter Councilman Lange moved that the statutory rules requiring reading on three different days be suspended and for final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilman Leshovsky. The Mayor then stated the question "Shall Ordinance No. 4850 be passed and adopted?" Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been concurred in by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor signed and approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage and adoption of the same and affixed her signature thereto. The Mayor then instructed the City Clerk to publish said Ordinance No. 4850 as required by law.

The Mayor requested consideration of Ordinance No. 4851 authorizing the sale of City property which lies directly to the west of 905 North Birch Street to Mark and Katherine **Vrbka**.

Councilman Van Dyke introduced Ordinance No. 4851 entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, NEBRASKA, TO AUTHORIZE THE SALE OF CITY PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE THE TERMS OF SALE AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A QUITCLAIM DEED TO THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR A REMONSTRANCE TO SAID SALE AS PROVIDED BY LAW; TO PROVIDE WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM and moved that the ordinance be passed on first reading. Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman seconded the motion. Said ordinance was then read into the record by title by the City Clerk. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. Ordinance No. 4851 passed on first reading.

Councilman Van Dyke moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended. Councilman Fauss seconded the motion to suspend the rules. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was adopted by three-fourths of the Council and the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days was suspended for consideration of said ordinance.

Thereafter Councilman Van Dyke moved that the statutory rules requiring reading on three different days be suspended and for final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilman Fauss. The Mayor then stated the question "Shall Ordinance No. 4851 be passed and adopted?" Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been concurred in by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor signed and approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage and adoption of the same and affixed her signature thereto. The Mayor then instructed the City Clerk to publish said Ordinance No. 4851 as required by law.

The Mayor requested consideration of Ordinance No. 4852 authorizing the sale of City property which lies directly to the west of 906 North Boxelder Street to Danny and Lisa **Walters**.

Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman introduced Ordinance No. 4852 entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORFOLK, NEBRASKA, TO AUTHORIZE THE SALE OF CITY PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE THE TERMS OF SALE AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A QUITCLAIM DEED TO THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR A REMONSTRANCE TO SAID SALE AS PROVIDED BY LAW; TO PROVIDE WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET FORM and moved that the ordinance be passed on first reading. Councilman Van Dyke seconded the motion. Said ordinance was then read into the record by title by the City Clerk. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. Ordinance No. 4852 passed on first reading.

Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman moved that the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days be suspended. Councilman Brenneman seconded the motion to suspend the rules. Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The motion to suspend the rules was adopted by three-fourths of the Council and the statutory rule requiring reading on three different days was suspended for consideration of said ordinance.

Thereafter Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman moved that the statutory rules requiring reading on three different days be suspended and for final passage of the ordinance which motion was seconded by Councilman Brenneman. The Mayor then stated the question "Shall Ordinance No. 4852 be passed and adopted?" Roll call: Ayes: Councilpersons Leshovsky, Lange, Van Dyke, Kaspar-Beckman, Brenneman, Fauss and Saunders. Nays: None. Absent: Wilson. Motion carried. The passage and adoption of said ordinance having been concurred in by a majority of all members of the Council, the Mayor signed and approved the ordinance and the City Clerk attested the passage and adoption of the same and affixed her signature thereto. The Mayor then instructed the City Clerk to publish said Ordinance No. 4852 as required by law.

No comments were received regarding the monthly commercial and industrial building permit report for September 2005 or the Works-In-Progress report for the period September 28 through October 11, 2005. Both reports were included in the agenda packets.

Councilman Fauss moved, seconded by Councilwoman Kaspar-Beckman to adjourn the meeting at 8:24 p.m. Mayor Adams declared the meeting adjourned.

ATTEST:	Gordon D. Adams Mayor	
Elizabeth A. Deck City Clerk		
(SEAL)		

I, the undersigned Clerk, hereby certify that the foregoing is the full, true and correct original document of proceedings of Monday, October 17, 2005, had and done by the Mayor and Council; that all of the subjects included in the proceedings were contained in the agenda for the meeting, kept continually current and available for public inspection at the office of the Clerk; that such subjects were contained in said agenda for at least twenty-four hours prior to the meeting; that at least one copy of all reproducible material discussed at the meeting was available at the meeting for examination and copying by members of the public; that the said minutes were in written form and available for public inspection within ten working days and prior to the next convened meeting of said body; that all news media requesting notification concerning meetings of said body were provided advance notification of the time and place of said meeting and the subjects to be discussed at said meeting.

Elizabeth A Deck

Elizabeth A. Deck City Clerk

(SEAL)